ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2017
3:19 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Sam Kito, Chair
Represent ati ve Adam Whol, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Chris Birch
Representative Gary Knopp

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Coll een Sullivan-Leonard
Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 90

"An Act relating to occupational licensing fees; relating to an
occupational investigation surcharge; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 90

SHORT TITLE: OCC. LI CENSI NG FEES; | NVESTI GATI ON COSTS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) Kl TO

01/ 30/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 17 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 13/ 17 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

CRYSTAL KCENEMAN, St aff

Representative Sam Kito

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 90 on
behal f of Representative Kito, prine sponsor.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 13, 2017



ALVI N KENNEDY, | nvesti gator

D vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
( DCBPL)

Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 90.

JANEY HOVENDEN, Director

D vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
( DCBPL)

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Economi c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 90.

AL BARRETTE
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 90.

JOHANNA CROSSETT, Direct-Entry Mdw fe
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 90.

ERROL CHAMPI QN, Chair

| ndustry | ssues G oup

Al aska Association of Realtors

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 90.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:19:41 PM

VICE CHAIR ADAM WOOL called the House Labor and Comrerce
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3:19 p. m
Represent ati ves Josephson, Stutes, Birch, Knopp, Kito, and Wol

were present at the call to order.

HB 90- OCC. LI CENSI NG FEES; | NVESTI GATI ON COSTS

3:20: 30 PM

VI CE CHAIR WOOL announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 90, "An Act relating to occupational I|icensing
fees; relating to an occupational investigation surcharge; and
providing for an effective date."

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 13, 2017



3:20: 50 PM

CHAIR SAM KITO as prine sponsor of HB 90, stated that boards

with a limted nunber of registrants - such as the Board of
Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves, the Big Gane Commercia
Services Board, and The Real Estate Conmi ssion - share |arge
investigative costs over a snmall nunber of people. Statute
requires that each board is financially self-sufficient. Thi s
leads to large spikes in licensing fees from one biennium to
anot her . These l|arge fees can beconme an inpedinment for a

licensee to enter a profession.

CHAI R KI TO explained that the issue has previously been brought
before the legislature in different forns. He noted that years
ago, efforts were nmde by the departnent to internalize
i nvestigation costs. However, the effort was unsuccessful
because the bill relied on the general fund. He nmentioned
del i berating about |abor and comrerce issues that could help
| arger groups of people perform their functions nuch nore
safely, easily, and financially reasonably: This issue is a top
priority of the | abor and commerce issues he hopes to address.

CHAIR KITO inforned that HB 90 would take the board
investigation costs and would assess a fee anong all |icensees
and registrants of occupational |icenses. That anmount of noney
would pay for the investigations for all the |icensing boards.
He expl ained that individual board investigative costs vary from
t housands of dollars to | ess than $100. The total anount spread
over all of the licensees equates to about $60 per biennium [per
i censee]. This is $7 to $20 nore than sone |icensees pay now
and thousands of dollars less than sone pay now. He expressed
that the change of the cost structure in HB 90 would make the
pr of essi ons nore approachable for people starting new careers.

3:25: 09 PM

CHAIR KITO said this effort is simlar to health insurance or
ot her real ns. He acknow edged the contrary position is that
sone boards feel they don't use investigations at the sane |evel
as other boards and are not interested in paying the cost. He
offered his opinion that the shared cost anong all |icensees is
relatively mnor in light of the overall |icensing costs and

hel ps the entire division. He renarked:
| think it provides the ability for the division to

have a better way of spreading costs out instead of
trying to spend so nuch work managi ng how nuch

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 13, 2017



noney a board might be able to accommbdate. So one of
the challenges in the system right now is because the
costs have to be adjusted per biennium if you have a
licensing fee that <could ... result in a very
significant increase in fees, there's nothing, even in
our current statute, that allows those costs to be
spread out over ... [nultiple biennia] although that
is being done. Because it's the only way to avoid a
significant Dbarrier of entry to sonme of those
pr of essi ons. So, in a sense, the departnment is
violating the law in a way, even directed to [do sO]
by our Legislative Audit Division to nmake sure that we
are not creating a situation where we ... are turning
peopl e away from a profession.

CHAIR KITO offered his opinion that helping professions wth
fewer licensees is also beneficial to professions with a |arger
nunber of |icensees. He inforned that he is a registrant with
the Alaska State Board of Regi stration for Architects,
Engi neers, and Land Surveyors (AELS). Under HB 90, his annua
board fee would increase by $20, an anobunt he stated he could
af f or d. He relayed that the increase would be not too nuch of
an inpact on his budget. He expressed that a famly nenber of
his mght want to receive services froma mdw fe and everyone
benefits from ensuring that professions have the resources they
need. He stated that he is willing to discuss other solutions
to this problem although he said the proposed |egislation
seened to himto be the nost fair to the nost people.

3:28: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES shared that she knew of a board that was
charged very significant investigative charges, which put the
board a half a mllion dollars in the hole unbeknownst to its
menbers. She explained that the problem was that the departnent
determined if the investigations should proceed with either no
i nput or objections fromthe board. She remarked that the board
said, "We can handle this and we can find these individuals, and

it wll be much nore cost-effective than launching this big
i nvestigation, when we know what's ... happened.” She stated
that the bill doesn't address that problem She acknow edged it
mght be a separate issue, but the issues coincide. She
suggested having enforceable parameters on how investigations
are | aunched. | nvestigations are expensive and |lead to boards

i ncurring huge fees.

3:30: 02 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 13, 2017



CHAIR KITO stated that there are different aspects to the
problenms with investigations and |licensing, and he remarked, "W
| ooked at it in terms of this being one piece.” He noted that
he has been thinking about the related issues. He stated his
concern that investigating clainms of individuals who are not
Iicensed or governed by the board mght not be a valid use of
registrants' fees. He expressed that the discussion is
necessary but should happen in the next phase: first | ook at the
costs, then |look at the responsibilities of the investigators.
He remarked, "Are the investigators there to nake sure that each
one of us engineers is doing the job that we're supposed to be
doing, or is that job also to include |ooking for people that
are practicing wthout that |icense?"

CHAIR KITO acknowl edged that there are sonme questions and
concerns that remain about whether the investigative costs have

been identified properly. He stated that the information from
the Division of Legislative Audit did not find errors or
concerns with how investigations were taking place. However,
the division did find sonme issues wth how costs were
distributed anong |icensees over a couple of years. He

referenced previous testinony from Kris Curtis, Legislative
Auditor, who had infornmed that nobst of the past issues wth
i nvestigative costs not being incorporated into the licensing

fees had been resolved. He added that wunder HB 90, current
debts from previous investigations wuld be borne by the
affiliated boards and would “"start a new day"; new

i nvestigations would be paid for through a conbined fund as they
occur.

3:33:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked who manages t he costs of
i nvesti gations. He offered his hope that the affiliated board
woul d have sone control of or engagenment with the investigative
costs i ncurred. He asked how a hal f-m | 1ion-dollar
i nvestigative charge could be incurred.

CHAIR KITO stated that the departnent currently fields the
requests for investigations. The requests cone from individuals
- either board registrants or public nenbers - who are concerned
about behaviors or practices of a licensed professional. The
conplaints go to the investigator assigned to the board, who
then generally determnes or verifies with a board nenber if an
investigation is warranted. He stated that the board is often
engaged in the decision of whether or not an investigation takes

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 13, 2017



pl ace; investigators don't proceed with an investigation wthout

some consultation with the board. He inforned that costs are
wel | known by the department and are reported to the individua
boar ds. Sonme investigations involving the Big Game Comrercia

Services Board had very high costs due to significant amounts of
travel in renote areas.

3:36:24 PM

CRYSTAL KOENEMAN, Staff, Representative Sam Kito, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, answered questions on HB 90 on behalf of
Representative Kito, prime sponsor. She referred to a breakdown
of the investigative process included in the commttee packet.
She noted that boards with higher investigative costs have been
working with investigators to determne what should be
i nvestigated. The departnent has been working with those boards
so that it doesn't appear that investigators act independently,
but work in tandem with the boards for the protection of
i censees and all of Al aska.

3:37:22 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON r emar ked:

You could have crimnal msconduct, for which there is

either a conviction or an acquittal. It can be
[a] very <close call in either case, a different
standard ... and a belief that ... for exanple, if a

crimnal charge were defeated, surely a civil charge
could be defeated, even though the standard is | ower.
And there could be public safety issues; there could
be sonmebody who's just dead-set on keeping their
license ... and ... "to hell with anything else" kind
of thing. | suspect that happens.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated that [defendants] are entitled
to due process of trials and hearings, though this process could
run up a big tab

CHAIR KITO stated that he is not aware of any investigations
that have crossed into the crimnal realm He remarked, "If you
cross into the crimnal realm then | don't know that ... any
kind of a process within the board review has any bearing, but
any investigative materials that the investigator came up wth,
|"'m sure get transferred over into that crimnal case." He
stated that he is not sure what a board's financial
responsi bility woul d be.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 13, 2017



MS. KCENEMAN stated that she knows of sone cases that "have both
gone crimnal and civil."

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON commented that the instances involving
the Big Gane Commercial Services Board would likely involve
crim nal charges.

3:39: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP stated his interest in finding a solution
to high investigative costs, although he offered his opinion
that HB 90 m ght not be the right nechanism He drew attention
to AELS s budget from 2012 and 2013, and noted that the
i nvestigative costs are  mninal in conparison to the
adm nistrative costs. He expressed that the fees nostly support
the adm ni stration.

3:41: 21 PM

CHAIR KITO stated that the proposed |legislation just addresses
the investigative costs. Both now and under HB 90, all other
costs are attributed to each individual board, which is
responsi ble for nanaging all other conponents. He remarked,
"All we're talking about is pulling those investigative costs
out for all the boards and then nornmalizing them anong all the
boards. Al those other costs would remain attributable to one
of the boards."

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked for clarification that the bill only

addresses professional |icensing and not business |icensing.
CHAIR KITO answered yes; the bill pertains only to the
individuals that for life, health, or safety reasons are

required to have a license or registration.
3:42: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked whether a board has an option to
contract independently for background research. He al so asked
if the investigative assets available to the board all conme from
within the Departnent of Conmerce, Community & Econom c
Devel opnent (DCCED) or the Departnent of Law.

CHAIR KITO stated that years ago, AELS asked for changes in

statute to designate one investigator for AELS investigations,
and HB 90 would not affect that. He offered his understanding

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 13, 2017



that the departnent can authorize an investigator to hire
sonmeone to collect additional information for things that the
i nvestigat or does not have the capacity to do.

3:43:39 PM
VICE CHAIR WOOL asked if there are any groups that use a

di sproportional amount of investigative resources - not per
i ndi vi dual but per group.

3:44: 06 PM

M5. KOENEMAN responded that there are. She indicated that on
their websi t es, boar ds i ncl ude annual reports for
i nvesti gations. I n terns of i nvesti gations, i nt akes,

conplaints, and probations, acupuncturists had a total of 10,
architects, engineers, and l|land surveyors a total of 70, big
game guides 148, barbers and hairdressers 162. She noted that
these nunbers represent the total investigations, intakes,
conpl aints, and probations for each of the specific boards.

VICE CHAIR WOOL asked if sone investigations, depending on what
field they're in, are inherently nore expensive and require nore
experti se.

M5. KOENEMAN answer ed absol utely. She added that the costs can
vary by profession.

VICE CHAIR WOOL noted that the Board of Certified Direct-Entry
M dwi ves has only 64 or 65 nmenbers to spread out the potentia
cost of any large investigations. This circunstance has led to
m dwi ves' fees going up to approximately $4,000. He asked for
confirmation that if the <costs were spread over 74,000
licensees, then license fees would average about $30 per year.
This woul d not include any board's past debts.

M5. KCENEMAN responded that is correct. She added that the
aforenentioned $30 fee cones from rough estinates; t he
departnent is working to get nore accurate cost data to her.

3:47: 37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH asked if when a $100,000 investigation is
deened necessary, the board is nmade aware of the fact that it

coul d have an adverse inpact on annual |icensing fees.

3:48: 24 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 13, 2017



ALVI N KENNEDY, Investigator, Division of Corporations, Business,
and Professional Licensing (DCBPL), Departnment of Conmerce,
Community & Economc Devel opnent ( DCCED) , responded to
Representative Birch's question, saying that when a conplaint is
filed, an investigator is assigned. Once the matter is found to
be within the investigator's jurisdiction, the investigator
neets with soneone on the board to review the case and ensures
that the investigation should proceed. He remarked:

The investigator does not determ ne whether or not
statute ... or regulation has been violated, it's
actually the board nenber who nmakes that determ nation
as to whether or not what type of discipline wll be
doled out from what we find out if it is, in fact, a
violation of statute or regulation. So boards are
involved very early on in the process when we start
our investigations. Again, we're the fact finders, we
find the facts, and then we present themto ... one or
two nenbers depending upon the board who's review ng
the case so that they can make a determination as to
whi ch direction we're going to go.

3:49: 55 PM
REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH asked how many investigators there are.

MR. KENNEDY responded that there are currently 16 assigned to
regul ate for 43 different professions.

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if there is a budget generated before
an investigation in order for the board to have sone expectation
of costs and nmake a bal anced deci si on.

MR. KENNEDY stated that normally the board determnes if a trip

i S needed. He expressed that very seldom do investigators fly
to renote places; investigators wusually drive if a trip is
deened necessary. In npbst occurrences, investigators partner

with soneone in the area, such as state troopers, who house and
transport the investigator to reduce costs.

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked if overseeing the 43 professions
keeps the 16 investigators busy.

MR.  KENNEDY answered it does. He stated that they review
conplaints as they cone in. If a person checks certain boxes
when filing an application for licensing, then the application

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 13, 2017



goes to the investigative division for review The division
ensures that Al aska does not |icense soneone with barrier crimnes
in his/her background that m ght be a threat to public safety.

3:52:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if any board nenber can mneke the
determ nation of whether or not there will be an investigation

She asked if this determnation is unilateral or if it requires
a majority of the board.

MR. KENNEDY answered it's unilateral. He relayed that there are
two public nenbers nornmally assigned to each board, and public

menbers do not review investigations. Those board nenbers who
are licensed within the profession are the nenbers who review
the cases and determ ne what direction the division wll go,

dependi ng on the jurisdiction.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if an investigation would be
| aunched if a board has seven nenbers and six say they don't
want an investigation, but one believes an investigation is
needed.

MR. KENNEDY stated that by the tinme the investigation is in
front of the entire board, the investigation has already been
conduct ed. When the entire board is looking at a case, it is
determining - by magjority - whether or not to accept discipline.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if there is currently a back |og of
cases.

MR.  KENNEDY answered no. He added that right now, when a
conplaint comes in, there is a 72-hour wndow to respond.
Paperwork is sent out either to a board nenber to review and
determne whether or not there was a violation or to the
conpl ai nant . Cases are imediately assigned to an investigator
once received by the division. The division ains to close cases
wi thin 180 days.

3:55:09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  STUTES asked how nmany investigations are
currently going on.

MR. KENNEDY stated he does not know. He informed that in the

| ast fiscal year, the division |ooked into 1,600 investigations,
conplaints, probation matters, and intake matters.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- February 13, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked M. Kennedy to provide the nunber of
current open investigations and the nunber of investigations
that were concluded in 2016.

3:57:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked how much activity is seen with the
board managi ng eut hanasia permts.

MR. KENNEDY answered not a | ot.
3:57: 43 PM

VICE CHAIR WOOL asked if M. Hovenden foresees it being easier
to manage the boards as a whole wth spreading out the
investigative costs as opposed to |ooking at each individual
boar d.

3:58:10 PM

JANEY HOVENDEN, Director, Division of Corporations, Business,
and Professional Licensing (DCBPL), Departrment of Conmerce,
Community & Econom c¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), stated that spreading
out the costs would nmake fee analysis easier. She noted that
the m dw ves and big gane guides are in very difficult positions
needing to raise fees to a level that creates a barrier to the
pr of essi on.

VICE CHAIR WOCOL asked if an individual doing massages w thout a
license is reported, then should the other nassage therapists be
responsi bl e for covering the cost of an investigation.

M5. HOVENDEN said that is how the statute is witten. She
of fered her understanding that the issue has been considered in
previous |egislation. She proposed that it could be deened
public safety and be paid for by the general fund, but as
statute is witten, it is to be paid for by licensees of the
pr of essi on.

VI CE CHAI R WOOL asked whether the investigative costs are nostly
travel or if investigators bill for tine Ilike a private
i nvestigat or woul d.

M5. HOVENDEN answered that investigators keep track of tine

worked to 15 mnutes increnments for billing. This ensures that
the prograns or boards are billed for the corresponding tine.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 13, 2017



She noted that this is where the volatility of costs cones in.
Adm nistrative and indirect costs are quite predictable and
woul d keep fees constant. The investigative costs are vari able.

VICE CHAIR WOOL referred to M. Kennedy's testinony regarding

i nvestigators stayi ng W th troopers. He not ed t hat
i nvestigations of pharnacists would be very different from big
ganme gui des. He asked for confirmation that different people

i nvestigate big gane hunting and pharnmaci st viol ati ons.

M5. HOVENDEN stated that each investigator is assigned one or
nore program sone are assigned to a particul ar program because
it requires experience. Al'l the investigators are capable of
cross training, but investigators are wusually specialized in
t heir assigned prograns.

4. 02: 51 PM

VI CE CHAI R WOOL opened public testinony on HB 90.

4:03: 01 PM

AL BARRETTE testified in opposition to HB 90. He conpared the
di scussion to a discussion on income tax where the collective

pays for everybody. He stated that the proposed |egislation
| acks incentive to reduce investigations. The bill would fund
investigations by charging individuals wth occupational
i censes. He drew attention to his letter to the commttee
[included in the comittee packet], which asked if these
occupations are overrated. He stated his famliarity wth big

gane comercial services, and offered that an individual could
be trapping, nmake a gane violation unrelated to guiding, and
then pay a fee for the crimnal violation. After, the Big Gane
Commercial Services Board would conduct its own investigation
about whether a standard was violated wthin the qguiding

i ndustry. He said that although the trapping violation had
nothing to do with guiding, the investigation is required based
on how the regulations are witten. He proposed that each

occupation needs to look at the reasons behind the high costs
and reoccurrences of investigations.

4:04:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON recal l ed that previous testinony taught
that the board nmenbers - the |licensees - ask for the
i nvestigation. He characterized that M. Barrette's conplaint

is not wwth the DCCED, but with his co-professionals.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -12- February 13, 2017



MR. BARRETTE responded that the characterization is partially

true. He stated that HB 90 ains to recoup the costs by
requiring all licensees to pay a surcharge to even out the ebb
and flow of the investigations of all |icensed persons. He
remarked, "It should be ... maybe you, the legislature, telling

you need to review what's going on within your occupation,
your industry. Wiy is nursing or why is big ganme commercia
services having such a high bill or reoccurrence  of

investigations? |Is it because the standards are overregul at ed?"

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if M. Barrette's theory is to
| essen the standard so peopl e conply.

MR. BARRETTE answered no. He again offered the exanple of
someone conmtting a violation that had nothing to do wth
hi s/ her occupational |icense, yet the occupational board would
investigate it again.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if an individual is found to have
violated his/her hunting license, then is it reasonable to infer
t hat he/she m ght not be as trustworthy when guiding?

MR. BARRETTE answered that would be reasonabl e. He remarked

"Whuld it be reasonable to say if you got a drunk driving ticket
that you're not conplying with the nursing board or ... the
board of architecture?"

4:07:52 PM

JOHANNA CROSSETT, Direct-Entry Mdw fe, testified in support of
HB 90. She stated her appreciation for the interest and
di scussion of a way to provide sone predictability of |icensing
f ees.

4:08: 32 PM

VICE CHAIR WOOL asked whether the Board of Certified Direct-
Entry Mdw ves' increase of |licensing fees to approximtely
$4, 000 woul d reduce the nunber of participants in the profession
or increase the occurrence of individuals practicing wthout a
license.

M5. CROSSETT she offered her opinion that the high fees could
potentially reduce the anount of direct-entry m dwi ves
practicing or apprenticing. She stated that she does not
foresee m dw ves practicing unlicensed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- February 13, 2017



4:09:29 PM

ERRCL CHAMPI ON, Chair, Industry Issues Goup, Al aska Association
of Realtors, testified in opposition to HB 90. He stated that

the bill goes over the nmark. In previous years, [the Real
Estate Commission] did not pay its own way but has run a surplus
in the last five years. He stated that it's inportant for
boards to take ownership of investigative costs. He stated that
if a colleague "doesn't pass nuster," then maybe other factors
i ke education need to be addressed. Amal gamating the charges
and handing them out won't work. He explained that conplaints

about a realtor don't go to the full Real Estate Conm ssion; a
conplaint goes to one realtor nenber, then the investigator and
t he comm ssion nmenber deci de whether the investigation should go
forward. The rest of the comm ssion doesn't hear the conpl aint

until the investigation is conpleted to determne if action is
needed. He relayed that he is not sure the 2,643 realtors need
to take ownership of 70,000 |icenses. He said he understands

the issue and need to snoboth things out, and stated his desire
to let the Real Estate Conm ssion and the division | evee out the
cost of investigations. If the costs are blended, he renarked
“I think we |ose sonething.” He conpared it to blending all the
grades for all students in school.

4:12: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated that HB 90 is a good idea. He
infornmed that the Real Estate Commi ssion could becone insolvent,
and HB 90 works as insurance for the nmenbers offered for $20 per
per son. He offered his understanding that realtors didn't ask
for a relationship to hair dressers. He stated that the current
systemis unfair because nmenbers absorb the cost of a bad actor.

MR. CHAMPI ON responded that the current system is not broken,
and there is no need to fix it. He noted there is a great
director at DCBPL and good accounting practices. He stated that
not nmany boards are interested in the blending of charges. He
remarked, "1 don't see what we're gaining by this legislation.”

4:14:16 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH asked if the [Real Estate Conmi ssion] has
al ways been under a state licensing unbrella. He noted that

sone professions, such as physicians and attorneys, are
i ndependent |y nanaged.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 13, 2017



MR. CHAMPI ON answered that that is his inpression with his 18
years of experience. He added that often the investigator
doesn't understand real estate, and this bill further renoves
ownership of errors and oni ssions.

4:15: 33 PM

CHAIR KITO stated that HB 90 would change the financing
mechani sm for investigative costs, but would not to change the
structure of how investigations are conpleted. The investigator
currently assigned to the Real Estate Conm ssion would still be
assigned the sane duties under HB 90. He stated that sonetines
new investigators are trained on issues pertaining to an
i nvestigation, although that would happen regardless of HB 90.
He offered an exanple that he can pay for sonmeone to plow the
street in front of his house but not pay to plow the street in
front of his neighbor's house. He asked how anyone would
account for paying for just one portion of the street. Sorme
boards are adversely inpacted by overly high and sporadic
i nvestigation costs. He renarked:

It is in the public's interest to have those costs
spread out over all the professions, and all the
prof essi ons do have the opportunity to receive support
services from the investigative group, whether [or

not] they need those support services ... Every board
woul d have a different need for those services, but
every board ... in investigations has the ability to
draw fromthat. Because of the fact that a profession

is licensed with fewer representatives or because of
the fact that they have specific investigations that
may cost a significant anount of noney, they are being
penal i zed with their |icensing.

CHAIR KITO expressed that it's becomng cost prohibitive to
beconme part of sone professions. The bill ainms to enhance and
support conmer ce.

4:18: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if HB 90 would nmeke it less likely
for a board or board nenbers to be responsible for their own
actions. She asked what the deterrent would be for a board to
not continually violate the paraneters if the board is not being
hel d responsible for its own investigations.

4:19: 02 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- February 13, 2017



VICE CHAIR WOOL offered that one incentive not to continually
violate paraneters is that individuals could |ose their |icenses
or be fined. There is punishment other than incurring debt to
t he board.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked whether an investigated violation
goes to sonmeone at DCBPL other than the investigation division

she asked, "So there can be punitive damages other than the
i nvestigations?"

4:20:29 PM

MS. HOVENDEN asked for the question to be clarified.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES clarified her question and asked, "If a
board is chronically incurring investigative costs by way of
violations, is there sonmething that the departnent does to

follow up on this <chronic investigative charges by this
particul ar board? Are there other avenues of penalizing this
boar d: If it's ... one board, but several different nenbers
that are constantly having this issue?"

M5. HOVENDEN stated that it is not the boards thenselves
incurring the costs - the costs are incurred by I|icensees.
Neither the board nor the division can control nunber of the
conpl aints received. She stated that the board is responsible
for contacting licensees about a particular problem such as
conti nui ng educati on.

4:22:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if there is an avenue for the
departnent to get involved in punitive responses. She asked if
t he engineering board had 1,000 nenbers and in one year had 500
violations that had been investigated, would the departnent get
involved or wuld it be kept between the board and the
i nvestigator?

M5. HOVENDEN answered that the investigator works with the board

or licensees with any problem The |licensees are fined and have
penal ties.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked whether the board has the capability
to recommend revoking a |icense.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- February 13, 2017



M5. HOVENDEN stated that the board makes the final decision on a
situation with a licensee after an investigation.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked for clarification on whether the
board has the option to revoke a |icense.

M5. HOVENDEN stated that the board nust follow regulations, but
can revoke |licenses under set circunstances.

4:25:15 PM

VI CE CHAI R WOOL announced that HB 90 was hel d over.

4:25:22 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
4:25 p. m

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 13, 2017



